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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Eighth (28th) Annual General Meeting of the Members 
of IFCI Factors Limited will be held on Monday, the 18th day of December, 2023 at 12:00 noon 
through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Video Means (OAVM) in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Circulars issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs in this regard, to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 

March 31, 2023 and the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain (Din: 05103064), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

 

3. To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-
24 as appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India and to pass the following 
Resolution, with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5), 142 and all other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 

force), the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to decide and fix 

the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor(s) of the Company appointed by Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India for the Financial Year 2023-24, as may be deemed fit.” 

 

 

   By Order of Board of Directors 
 
 

November 23, 2023                              Alan Savio 
New Delhi                         Managing Director 
  
IFCI Factors Limited                                             
Registered Office: 
7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61,                               
Nehru Place, New Delhi – 110019                     
CIN: U74899DL1995GOI074649 
Phone: +91-11-41642805 
Website: www.ifcifactors.com 
Email: smitkumar@ifcifactors.com 
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Notes: 
 
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has vide its circular dated 28th December 2022 

read with circulars dated 8th April 2020 and 13th April 2020 (collectively referred to as 
‘MCA Circulars’) permitted holding of the annual general meeting (‘AGM’) through 
VC/OAVM facility, without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. In 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and MCA Circulars, 
the AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM hereinafter called as ‘e-
AGM’. 

2. The deemed venue for the 28th e-AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at 
7th IFCI Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019. 

3. Attendance of the Members participating in the 28th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility shall 
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

4. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not 
be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars 
through VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available 
for the e-AGM and hence the Proxy Form are not annexed to this Notice. 

5. Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF etc.) are required to 
send a scanned copy(pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing body's  
Resolution/authorisation, etc., authorising their representative to attend the AGM on its 
behalf and to vote. The said resolution/authorisation may be sent to by e- mail through 
their registered email address to smitkumar@ifcifactors.com. 

6. The facility of joining the e-AGM through VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before and 
will be open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the e-AGM.   

7. In terms of sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read with the rules made thereunder, 
companies may send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including financial 
statements, boards’ report, etc. by electronic mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of the 
Act read with MCA Circulars, notice of the 28th e-AGM along with the Annual Report for FY 
2022-2023 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company. Members may note that the Notice and 
Annual Report for FY 2022-2023 will also be available on the Company’s website at 
www.ifcifactors.com 

8. Members shall receive necessary information/procedure separately at their registered e-
mail addresses to enable them to access the audio-video facility for participation in the 
meeting. 

9. Members are informed that in case a demand for poll is made by any member in respect 
to any item, the members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending emails 
through email addresses which are registered with the Company. The voting shall be sent 
to the Company by e-mail through its registered email address to 
smitkumar@ifcifactors.com. 

10. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 
their e-mail address to smitkumar@ifcifactors.com for receiving all communication 
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. 

11. Members are requested to kindly communicate immediately any change in their address, 
if any, to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. 

2

mailto:smitkumar@ifcifactors.com


    
IFCI Factors Limited                                                                                                         ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 

 

 

12. All documents referred to in the Notice calling the AGM and. The same will be shared with 
the members on receipt of request. 

13. Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, attendance slip and route 
map is not annexed to this Notice. 
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Information pursuant to Secretarial Standards 2, pertaining to Director seeking Re-

appointment/Appointment: 

Name  Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain 

Date of Birth, Age 05-05-1954, 69 years 

DIN No. 05103064 

Qualifications Honours Graduate in Science (B.Sc. Hons - GOLD    
MEDALIST) 
2. Master’s Degree in Economics (MA Economics) 
3. Certified Associate of the Indian Institute of 
Bankers 
4. Diploma in Personnel Management and Labour 
Welfare (GOLD MEDALIST) 
5. Diploma in French Language 

Date of  first appointment on Board 22/07/2020 

Experience Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain, aged 69 years, has over 36 

years of Rich experience with Public Sector Banks in 

India. He has served as an Executive Director of Union 

Bank of India where he was overseeing operations of 

the Bank in London, Hong Kong, Abu Dhabi, Dubai, 

Beijing, Shanghai, Antwerp and Sydney and also 

responsible for Human Resource Development, 

Management of non-performing assets/stressed assets 

portfolio of the Bank and Management and 

Development of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 

portfolio of the Bank. 

Prior to Union Bank of India, he has served upto the 

position of General Manager, National Banking Group-

Western India at Bank of India where he looked after 

oversees banking, processing of Large credit proposal. 

He has also worked as Manager (Credit) in Bank of 

India, Hong Kong overseeing one of the largest 

international portfolio of international trade finance and 

loan syndications for the Bank. 

In addition to the above he has also held the following 

position: 

 

1.Member on Board of Union KBC Asset Management 

Co. (A Mutual Fund company) 
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2.Invitee to Education and Training Committee of 

Indian Institute of Banking & Finance 

3.Member on Board of Governors of Madras School of 

Economics, Chennai 

4.Member of following committees of “Indian Bankers 

Association”: 

• High Level Group on the RBI Report on 

Information Security, Electronic  Banking, Technology, 

Risk Management and Cyber Frauds 

• Committee on Payment Systems and Banking 

Technology for the year 2011-12 

• Legal and Banking Operations Committee for 

the years 2012-13 and 2014-15 

5. Chaired the board and several committees at  Union 

Bank of India, on different occasions. 

Terms and condition of Appointment Appointed as Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director 

No. of Meetings of the Board attended during 
the financial year 2022-23.  
(Attended/Held) 

5/5 

Other Directorships 1.Fino Payments Bank Limited 
2.Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited 
3.Sark Finvest Private Limited 

Membership/ 
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards 
 
 

Fino Payments Bank 
Chairman of the following Committee 
 Risk and Asset Liability Management Committee 
Member of following Committee 
 Audit Committee 
 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 Committee of Directors 
 
Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited 

 Chairman of the following Committee 
 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Member of following Committee 
 Audit Committee 

Remuneration Entitled for sitting fees as per Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy of the Company for attending 

Meetings of Board & Committees 
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Relationship with other Director inter-se and 

with Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company 

None 

Shareholding in the Company Nil 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS  
 
The Board of Directors of your Company (“Company” or “IFL”) is presenting the 28th Annual 
Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statement for the year ended on 
March 31, 2023. 
 
 
Financial Summary   
 
The Financial Results of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 as per Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind - AS) are summarized below:                             
                                                                                                              (Rs. in lakh)                                                           

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2023 

Year ended 
31.03.2022 

Total Income 1,475.57 2,536.94 

Expenditure 
- Finance Cost 
- Employee benefits Expenses 
- Depreciation, amortization & impairment 
- Impairment on Financial Assets 
- Other Expenses 

 
1,470.78 

 551.25 
 16.49 

 (798.04) 
289.44 

 
1,956.24 

706.24 
7.47 

567.42 
496.61 

Total Expenditure 1,529.92 3,733.98 

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (54.34) (1,197.04) 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (54.34) (1,197.04) 

Tax Expense 
- Current Tax  
- Deferred Tax    

 
- 

(367.49)  

 
- 

229.86 

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (421.83) (967.18) 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
State of affairs of the Company 
 

Despite various recovery measures employed by your company over the past several years, 

the mismatch between income and organization costs resulted in year on year losses and a 

constrained liquidity position. To address the challenges faced by your company due to legacy 

Non Performing Assets, your company focussed on clean up of the Balance Sheet and 

reduction in organizational costs during the year. Your company also focussed on generating 

liquidity to meet its obligations towards servicing of Non Convertible Debentures, which fell 

due for repayment in April and May 2023. Through focussed recovery measures, steps for 

monetization of legacy accounts, close monitoring of liquidity and with the timely support of 

the Holding Company, your Company was able to augment its liquidity to meet all its debt 

servicing obligations without any delays.  

Certificate of Registration as NBFC-Factor 
 

Your Company holds a Certificate of Registration as NBFC–Factor issued by Reserve Bank of 
India and is a Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important NBFC Factor (NBFC–ND- SI-Factor). 
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Dividend 

With regard to the performance of your Company for the period ended on March 31, 2023, in 
view of losses for the year, no dividend on Equity Shares has been recommended by the Board 
for the year ended March 31, 2023. In view of loss incurred by the Company, the arrear of 
dividend on 9% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares and 10% Compulsory 
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares amounting to Rs.61.03 crore stands accumulated 
to the next year. 
 
Transfer to Reserves 

 
Your Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve in Financial Year 2022-23, 
as it has incurred a loss after tax of Rs. (421.83) lakh. 
 

Capital Structure / alteration of Share Capital  

The capital structure of your Company is as follows: 
 

Authorized Share Capital  
 
30,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 300,00,00,000/-. 
20,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-each aggregating to Rs. 200,00,00,000/-. 
 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 
 
27,94,38,860 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,79,43,88,600 /-. 
 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, there was no change in Authorized Share Capital, Issued, 
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of your Company. 
 
 
Change in status of your Company 
 

There has been no change in status of your Company, during the financial year ended 31 
March, 2023. 
  
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company consists of six Directors as on March 31, 2023, which 
includes five Non-Executive Directors and one Managing Director. Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco was 
appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. October 12, 2022 and Ms. Pooja Mahajan was 
appointed as non-executive Director w.e.f. November 24, 2022.  Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal 
resigned from Directorship w.e.f. September 12, 2022 due to withdrawal of his nomination by 
IFCI Limited on account of superannuation from services of IFCI Limited. Mrs. Deepali Pant 
Joshi resigned as non-executive Directors w.e.f November 09, 2022 due to pre-occupation 
and personal reasons. Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy resigned as Managing Director on account of 
withdrawal of his nomination by IFCI Limited w.e.f. October 12, 2022. Ms. Pooja Mahajan was 
regularised as Director w.e.f. December 21, 2022. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain, Non-Executive Director, will retire by 
rotation at the Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for reappointment at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

8
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During the year under review, the change in the composition of Board of Directors was as 
follows: 

i) Mr. Alan Savio (DIN:- 03497265) was appointed as Managing Director (Nominee of IFCI 

Ltd.) w.e.f October 12, 2022; 

ii) Ms. Pooja Mahajan (DIN:- 02874604) was appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 

November 24, 2022 and regularised as Director AGM w.e.f. December 21, 2022. 

iii) Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal resigned from Directorship w.e.f. September 12, 2022 due to 

withdrawal of his nomination by IFCI Limited. 

iv) Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi resigned as non-executive Directors w.e.f November 09, 2022 . 

Nomination & Remuneration Policy  
 
In compliance with the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules 
made thereunder, your Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 
 
Board Evaluation  
 
As per Notification dated June 5, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government 
companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of sub section (2), (3) and (4) 
of Section 178  of the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company being a Government Company is 
not required to disclose the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and carry out the evaluation 
of every Director’s performance. However, as a good practice, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Board have carried out the evaluation of individual directors, 
the Committees of the Board and the Board as a whole for FY 2022-23. 
 
Particulars of Employees 
 

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
Government companies are exempted form complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder. Your company being a 
Government Company is exempted from including the requisite information as a part of 
Director’s Report.  
 
Contracts or arrangements with Related Parties 
 

The Related Party Transactions during the year have been disclosed in the note no. 31 to the 
Notes to Accounts and Form No. AOC-2. The Related Party Transactions were in the normal 
course of business and were carried out at arm’s length basis. The Policy on Related Party 
Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors and Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure 
I. The said Policy is also uploaded on the website of your Company at www.ifcifactors.com.  
 
Annual Return 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall place a copy of the 
annual return in prescribed format on the website of the company i.e 
https://www.ifcifactors.com/investors.php 
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
 

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, your Company had constituted a 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. In terms of provisions of Section 135 (1) 
every company having net worth of Rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of Rupees 
one thousand crore or more or a net profit of Rupees five crore or more during the immediately 
preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the 
Board consisting of three or more Directors, out of which at least one director shall be an 
independent director. 
 
However, as per provisions of rule 3(2) of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, every company which ceases to be a company covered under section 135 (1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for three consecutive financial years shall not be required to constitute 
a CSR Committee and comply with the provisions contained in Section 135 (2) to (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. In view of the above mentioned provisions, IFCI Factors Ltd. didn’t fall 
under the criteria mentioned in Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the three 
consecutive financial years and hence the CSR Committee was dissolved by the Board in its 
meeting held on October 08, 2021.  
 
Fixed Deposits 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, your Company has not accepted any deposits 

from the public.  

Number of meetings of the Board  
 
The Board meets at regular intervals and the maximum interval between any two meetings 
did not exceed the maximum interval as per the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
The Board met five times during the Financial Year 2022-2023 viz., on April 19, 2022, May 13, 
2022, August 03, 2022, November 07, 2022, and February 09, 2023.  
 
Composition of Audit Committee 

 
The details of composition of Audit Committee forms part of the Corporate Governance Report 
appearing separately in the Annual Report. 
 
Your Directors would further like to inform that there has been no matter where the Board 
has not accepted recommendations of the Audit Committee. 
 
Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women At Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a 
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with 
the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. The Company has an Internal 
Complaint Committee to redress any issue related to sexual harassment in the organisation 
and to provide a safe and secure environment to employees in the organisation. 
 

10



  
IFCI Factors Limited                                                                                             ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 

 

The disclosure as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for Financial Year 2022-23 is given below: 
 
Number of complaints filed during the financial year:  Nil 
Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil 
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil 
 
 

Independent Directors’ Declaration 
 

Since there is no independent director on the Board of Directors. Hence, criteria of 
independence as prescribed under Sec 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable.  
 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the directors hereby confirm 

that: 
 

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year 2022-23, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures; 

ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 

loss of the Company for that period; 

iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act. They confirm that there 

are adequate systems and controls for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

v) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating properly;  

vi) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; and 

vii) no fraud was reported by auditors of the Company during FY 2022-23. 

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
 
As your Company is engaged in the business of financing Corporates in the capacity of being 
a Non-Banking Financial Company, therefore the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, except for Sub-Section (1) are not applicable to your Company. 
 

Internal Financial Control 
 

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements adopted by the Company 
are adequate and operating effectively. 
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Qualifications, Reservation or Adverse Remark or Disclaimer made by the 
Statutory Auditor 
 
The Financial Results of the Company for the financial year FY 2022-23 were unqualified by 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company. However, the Statutory Auditors provided for certain 
‘Emphasis of Matter’. The complete Auditors’ Report on the Standalone and Consolidated 
Financial Statements form part of the Annual Report. 
 
 
Secretarial Audit Report 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company appointed Ms. Sheetal & Company, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your Company. The Secretarial Audit 
Report for the FY 2022-23, as issued by them is enclosed as Annexure II. The Observations 
made by the Secretarial Auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2022-
23 and management replies thereon are as follows:- 
 

 Observations Management’s Reply 

(i) 
 
 
 
 
(ii) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(iii) 

The Board of Directors of the Company is 
duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors except Independent Directors. 
 
The Company was not in compliance with 
the provisions of section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014, in respect of the 
appointment of requisite number of 
Independent Directors, as there is no 
independent director on the Board of the 
Company. The Company is a Government 
Company in terms of Companies Act, 2013 
a prior approval from the Ministry of 
Finance to appoint any Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company, 
which is pending. 
 
The composition, chairmanship and 
quorum of meetings of Audit Committee & 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
Risk Management Committee and 
composition of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee were not in compliance with 
section 177 & 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

In the absence of Independent Directors 
on the Board of the Company, the 
Company is not in compliance with the 
provisions of section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Since IFCI Factors Limited is a 
Government Company, the power to 
appoint the Independent Directors vests 
with the Administrative Ministry in 
charge i.e. Ministry of Finance, 
Department of Financial Services (DFS). 
DFS has already been requested to 
appoint Independent Directors. Once 
the requisite number of Independent 
Directors are appointed, the provisions 
will be complied with. 
 
Due to absence of Independent 
Directors on the Board of the Company, 
the Audit Committee, Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee and Risk 
Management and Asset Liability 
Management Committee were 
constituted without Independent 
Directors. Once the requisite number of 
Independent Directors are appointed, 
the Committees will be accordingly 
constituted. 
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Risk Management 
 
Your Company has in place approved Risk Management Policy wherein all material risks faced 
by your Company are identified and assessed. Further, Risk Management is overseen by the 
Risk Management and Asset Liability Management Committee/Audit Committee on a 
continuous basis.  
 
Material changes and commitment affecting financial position of the Company 
 
There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred. 
 
Vigil Mechanism 
 
Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report their 
genuine concerns to the appropriate authorities for any instances of unethical behaviour, 
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and 
provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. The policy 
permits all the Directors and employees to report their concerns directly to the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee of the Company. During the year under review, no instance of protected 
disclosure has been made to the designated authority and no employee was denied access to 
the Audit Committee. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigilance Policy are available on 
the website of your Company. 
 
Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture/ Associate 
 

Your Company does not have any subsidiary/ joint venture/ associate company. 

Rating for Term Borrowings 
 

Your Company’s borrowings have been assigned the following ratings by Credit Analysis & 
Research Ltd. (CARE) and Brickwork during the year ended March 31, 2023: 
 

Long Term instruments  (NCD) CARE Rating- Care BB; Negative 

(Double B; Outlook: Negative) 
 

 Brickwork  
BWR BB ( Outlook: Stable) 

(BWR Double B; Outlook: Stable) 
 

 

Statutory Auditors & Auditors’ Report 
 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide their letter dated August 26, 2022, and 
subsequently revised letter dated September 23, 2022 appointed M/s. RASOOL SINGHAL & 
Co. (CR3463), Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors for the FY 2022-23. 
 

Corporate Governance 
 

The report on Corporate Governance is appended herewith and forms part of the Annual 
Report. 
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Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption  
 
Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars relating to 
conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption stipulated in the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 are not applicable.  
 
Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 
During the year under review, there was no expenditure in foreign exchange and there was 
no foreign exchange fluctuation Income during the financial year 2022-23. 
 
Cost Records 
 
The maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013, was not applicable to the Company. 
 
Application made or proceedings pending under IBC, 2016  
 
There is no application made or any proceeding pending against the Company under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.  
 
Disclosure of significant or material orders passed by regulators or Court 
impacting the going concern status of the Company 
 
There has been no order passed by any Regulator or Court impacting the going concern status 
of the Company and Company’s operations. 
 
 
Secretarial Standards 
 
The Company is compliant with applicable Secretarial Standards. 
 
Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India 
 
The comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) are placed at Annexure III 
along with the management responses. 
 
Acknowledgement 
 
The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the stakeholders for their support and 
contribution during the year.  
 

                                                        
                                               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

                                                                             
                   Alan Savio Pacheco              Sachikanata Mishra    

Date  : 07.11.2023                             Managing Director               Nominee Director                    
Place : New Delhi                                   DIN: 03497265                   DIN : 02755068 

Address : 7th Floor, IFCI Tower 
61, Nehru Place, New Delhi 110019 

14



  
IFCI Factors Limited                                                                                             ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 

 

 
Annexure-I      

Form AOC-2 

[pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2 013  and Rule 8(2) of Companies  

(Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

                                                                                                                                       

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. – Not Applicable 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 

i.  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Not Applicable 

ii.  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 

iii.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 

iv.  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

v.  Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

vi.  Date of approval by the Board 

vii.  Amount paid as advances, if any 

viii.  Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

i.  Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

IFCI Limited 

ii.  Nature of contracts / 
arrangements/ transaction 

Rent, Reimbursement of remuneration of 
Managing Director on Deputation, 
Miscellaneous expenses and LOC 

iii.  Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transaction 

N.A. 

iv.  Salient terms of the contracts 
or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Particulars Amount (in Rs.) 

Rent & Maintenance  1,66,24,000.00 

Reimbursement of 
remuneration of 
Managing Director 
on Deputation 

 *25,32,000.00 

 

Miscellaneous 
expenses 
( Oracle & 
Telephone) 

 12,91,000.00 

Salary 
Reimbursement of 
employee deputed 

43,87,000.00 
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v.  Date of approval by the Board N.A 

vi.  Amount paid as advances, if 
any 

N.A 

* Remuneration of Managing Director is up to October 12, 2023 
 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

i.  Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

IFCI Venture Capital Fund Limited 

ii.  Nature of contracts / 
arrangements/ transaction 

Salaries reimbursement of employees 
deputed.  

iii.  Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transaction 

N.A. 

iv.  Salient terms of the contracts 
or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Salaries reimbursement of employees 
deputed – Rs.18.65 lakh 

v.  Date of approval by the Board N.A 

vi.  Amount paid as advances, if 
any 

N.A 

 
 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

i.  Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

StockHolding DMS Limited 

ii.  Nature of contracts / 
arrangements/ transaction 

Payments towards storage  

iii.  Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transaction 

N.A. 

iv.  Salient terms of the contracts 
or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Payments towards storage – Rs.0.86 lakh 

v.  Date of approval by the Board N.A 

vi.  Amount paid as advances, if 
any 

N.A 

  
 

                                                                   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 

                                      Alan Savio Pacheco     Sachikanata Mishra    
Date  : 07.11.2023                                      Managing Director      Nominee Director                    
Place : New Delhi                                            DIN: 02171876          DIN : 02755068 

Address : 7th Floor, IFCI Tower 
61, Nehru Place, 
New Delhi 110019 
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Policy on Related Party Transactions 

Introduction 

 
This Policy deals with the Related Party Transactions (RPTs) in terms of RBI 

guidelines, Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws prescribing for 

formulation of RPT Policy. 

 
Definitions 

“Associate Company”, in relation to another company, means a company in which 

that other company has significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company 

of the company having such influence and includes a joint Venture company. 

 

Explanation- (a) the expression "significant influence" means control of at least 

twenty per cent. of total voting power, or control of or participation in business 

decisions under an agreement; 

 

(b) the expression "joint venture" means a joint arrangement whereby the parties 

that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the 

arrangement;. 

 

“Arm’s length transaction” means transaction between two related parties that 

is conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest. 

 

“Audit Committee” or “Committee” means “Audit Committee” constituted by the 

Board of Directors of the company, from time to time, under provisions of the 

Companies Act 2013 and RBI Guidelines. 

 

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of IFCI Factors, as 

constituted from time to time. 

 

“Company” means IFCI Factors. 

 

“Government Company” means any company in which not less than fifty one 

percent of the paid-up share capital is held by the Central Government, or by any 

State Government or Governments, or partly by the Central Government and partly 

by one or more State Governments, and includes a company which is subsidiary 

company of such a Government Company . 

 

“Independent Director” means a director of the Company, as appointed in terms 

of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. 

 

“Key Managerial Personnel” in relation to a company, means- 

(i) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

17



  
IFCI Factors Limited                                                                                             ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 

 

(ii)    Company Secretary; 

(iii)    Whole-time Director; 

(iv)      Chief Financial Officer; and 

(v) Such other officer of the Company as may be prescribed by the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs (MCA) from time to time. 

(vi) “Such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is 

in whole-time employment, designated as key managerial personnel by 

the Board” 

 

“Policy” means Policy on Related Party Transactions  

 

(A) “Related Party” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder  

 

i. a director or his relative; 
 

ii. a key managerial personnel or his relative; 
 

iii. a firm, in which director, manager or his relative is a partner; 
 

iv. a private company in which a director or manager or his relative is a member 

or director; 

 

v. a public company  in which a director or manager is a director and holds 

along with his relatives, more than 2% of its paid-up share capital; 

 

vi. any body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager 

is accustomed to act in accordance with the advice, directions or instructions 

of a director or manager; 

 

vii. any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director manager is 

accustomed to act: 

 

Provided that nothing in sub-clauses (vi) and (vii) shall apply to the advice, directions 

or instructions given in a professional capacity. 

 

viii. any body corporate which is: 

 

(a) a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company; or  

 

(b) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary; 

 

(c) an investing company or the venturer of the company. 

 

Explanation.—For the purpose of this clause, “the investing company or 

the venturer of a company” means a body corporate whose investment in 
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the company would result in the company becoming an associate 

company of the body corporate. 

 

ix. A director (other than Independent Director) or key managerial personnel of 

the holding company or his relative with reference to a company, shall be 

deemed to be a related partyJ 

 

(B)  As per the provisions of Accounting Standard: 

 

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing 

its financial statements (in this Standard referred to as the ‘reporting entity’). 

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a 

reporting entity if that person: 

(i) has control or joint control of the reporting entity; 

(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or 

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting 

entity or of a parent of the reporting entity. 

 

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions 

applies: 

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which 

means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the 

others). 

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate 

or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a 

member). 

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an 

associate of the third entity. 

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of 

either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the 

reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related 

to the reporting entity. 

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a 

member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the 

entity). 

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key 

management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the 

reporting entity. 
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“Relative” with reference to any person, means anyone who is related to another, 

if- 

(i) They are members of a Hindu Undivided Family; 

(ii) They are husband and wife; or  

(iii) One person is related to the other in such manner as may be prescribed 

 

List of relatives as per Rule 4 of Companies (Specification of Definition Details) Rules, 

2014 

 

A person shall be deemed to be relative of another, if he or she is related to another 

in the following manner, namely:- 

 

1. Father including ‘Step-Father’ 
 

2. Mother including ‘Step-Mother’ 
 

3. Son including ‘Step-Son’ , Son’s wife. 
 

4. Daughter including  ‘Daughter’s husband’’ 
 

5. Brother including ‘Step-Brother’ 
 

6. Sister including ‘Step-Sister’ 
 

“Related Party Transactions” A Related Party Transaction is transfer of 
resources, services or obligations between the Company and a related party, 
regardless of whether a price is charged. 

 
“Control” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder and Accounting Standard: 

 
(A) With reference to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 

 
Control shall include the right to appoint majority of the Directors or to control the 

management or policy decisions exercisable by a person or persons acting individually or in 

concert, directly or indirectly, including by virtue of their shareholding or management rights 

or shareholders’ agreement or voting agreements or in any other manner. 

 

(B) With reference to the provisions of Accounting Standard 

 

“Joint Ventures” –  A contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an 

economic activity which is subject to joint control. 
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Dealing with Related Party Transactions 

 
A. Approvals 
 
I. Approval by Audit Committee 
 
All Related Party Transactions (including any subsequent modifications 

thereof) shall require approval of the Audit Committee of Directors. 

However, the Audit Committee of Directors may grant omnibus approval 

for the RPTs proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

i) The Audit Committee shall, after obtaining approval of the Board of 

Directors, specify the criteria for making the omnibus approval.  

 

ii) The Audit Committee shall consider the following factors while 

specifying the criteria for making omnibus approval, namely: - (a) 

repetitiveness of the transactions (in past or in future); (b) justification for 

the need of omnibus approval.  

 

a. The Audit Committee may grant the omnibus approval in line with the 

policy on Related Party Transactions of the Company. 

 

b. The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus 

approval and that such approval is in the interest of Company. 

 

c. Such omnibus approval shall specify: 

i. The name(s) of the Related Party, nature of transaction, 

period of transaction, maximum amount of transaction that 

can be entered into. 

ii.    The indicative base price/current contracted price and the 

formula for variation in the price if any, and 

iii.    Such other conditions as Audit Committee may deem fit. 

d. Audit Committee shall review, on a quarterly basis, the details of RPTs 

entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval 

given. 

e. Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one 

year and shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year. 
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f. Where the need for RPT cannot be foreseen and aforesaid details are 

not available, audit committee may make omnibus approval for such 

transactions subject to their value not exceeding rupees one crore per 

transaction. 

 

In the event of inadvertent omission to seek the approval of the Related 

Party Transaction in accordance with the Policy, the matter shall be 

reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

 

Provided further that in case of transaction, other than transactions 

referred to in section 188, and where Audit Committee does not approve 

the transaction, it shall make its recommendations to the Board 

 

II.  Approval by Board of Directors 

 

Except with the consent of the Board of Directors given by a resolution at 
a meeting of the board, the Company shall not enter into any contract or 
arrangement with a related party with respect to : 
 
i. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials; 

ii. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind; 

iii. Leasing of property of any kind; 

iv. Availing or rendering of any services; 

v. Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, 
materials, services or property; 
 

vi. Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in 
the company, its subsidiary company or associate company; and 
Related Party Transactions. 

 

Explanation- 

the expression “office or place of profit” means any office or place- 

Where such office or place of profit is held by a director, if the director 
holding it receives from the Company anything by way of remuneration 
over and above the remuneration to which he is entitled as director, by way 
of salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or 
otherwise; 
 
Where such office or place is held by an individual other than a director or 
by any firm, private company or other body corporate, if the individual, 
firm, private company or body corporate holding it receives from the 
Company  anything by way of remuneration, salary, fee, commission, 
perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or otherwise; 
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vii. Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives 

thereof, of the company: 

Provided that nothing of the above shall apply to any transactions entered 
into by the Company in its ordinary course of business other than the 
transactions which are not on an arm’s length basis. 
 
(Ordinary Course of Business shall include those business which forms part 
of the Main Object of the Memorandum of Association of the Company) 
 

III.      Approval by Shareholders 

 

1. All the transactions which are in excess of the limits specified in  Section 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and which are not in the ordinary 
course of business & arm’s length basis shall require approval of 
shareholders by way of Resolution.  

 
However, transactions between two Government Companies are 
exempted from the aforesaid shareholders approval required under 
point no.1 above.  

 
2. No Member of the Company shall vote on such Resolution to approve 

any contract or arrangement which may be entered into by the 
Company, if such member is a related party. The Related Party here 
refers to such Party as may be Related Party in the context of the 
contract or arrangement for which the approval is required.  

 

However, the following are exempted from compliance of point no.2 
above : 
 
(i) Transactions between two Government Companies ; and 
(ii) Transactions between a holding company and its wholly owned  
(iii) subsidiary company whose accounts are consolidated with such 

holding company and placed before the shareholders at the 
general meeting for approval.  
 
 

Provided that nothing contained in above clause shall apply to a company in which ninety 

per cent. or more members, in number, are relatives of promoters or are related parties 
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Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions 

 

Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions 

 

i. Each director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be responsible for 

giving notice to the Company about any potential RPTs, he/she may be 

interested. 

 

Pre-requisites for entering into Potential Related Party Transactions 

A. Audit Committee / Board Level Pre-requisites 

 

The Company shall enter into any contract or arrangement with a related 

party subject to the following conditions, namely:- 

 

The agenda of the Board/ Audit Committee Meeting, as the case may be, 

at which the resolution is proposed to be moved shall disclose- 

 

i) The name of the related party and nature of relationship; 

 

ii) The nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the contract 

or arrangement; 

 

iii) The material terms of the contract or arrangement including the 

value, if any; 

 

iv) Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if 

any; 

 

v) The manner of determining the pricing and commercial terms, both 

included as part of contract and not considered as part of the 

contract; 

 

vi) Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered, 

if not, the details of factors not considered with the rationale for not 

considering those factors; and 

 

vii) And other information relevant or important for the Board to take a 

decision on the proposed transaction. 

 

Where any director is interested in any contract or arrangement with a 

related party, such director shall not be present at the meeting during 

discussions on the subject matter of the resolution relating to such contract 

or arrangement.  
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B. Shareholders’ Level Pre-requisites 

 

For the approval of shareholders, a notice calling the General Meeting will 

be sent along with the explanatory statement to the Shareholders. 

The Explanatory Statement to be annexed to the notice of a General 
Meeting convened for approval of the RPTs shall contain the following 
particulars, namely:- 
 

Name of the Related party; 
Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is related, if any; 
Nature of relationship; 

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or 

arrangement; 

Any other information relevant or important for the members to take a 

decision on the proposed resolution; 

 
Transactions not previously approved  
 
In the event the Company becomes aware of an RPT that has not been approved or ratified 

under this Policy, the transaction shall be placed as promptly as practicable before the Audit 

Committee or Board or the Shareholders as may be required in accordance with this Policy for 

review and ratification. 

 
The Audit Committee or the Board shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances regarding 

such transaction and shall evaluate all options available to the Company, including but not 

limited to ratification, revision, or termination of such transaction, and the Company shall take 

such action as the Audit Committee / the Board deems appropriate under the circumstances. 

 

Disclosure Requirements 

A. Disclosure by Board of Directors 
 
Every Director shall at the first Meeting of the Board in which he participates 

as a Director and thereafter at the first Meeting of the Board in every 

Financial Year or wherever there is any change in the disclosures already 

made, then at the first Board Meeting held after such change, disclose his 

concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, firm, 

or other association of individuals which shall include the shareholding. 

 

B. Disclosure on Website  
 
The Company shall disclose the policy on Related Party Transactions on its 

website and a web-link shall be provided in the Annual Report. 

 

C. Disclosure in Board’s Report 
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Every contract or arrangement entered into by the Company under Section 

188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring Board’s and Company’s 

subsequent approval by way of Resolution shall be referred to in the Board’s 

Report to the shareholders along with the justification for entering into such 

contract or arrangement. 

 

Non-approval or Related Party Transactions/Violation of 

Provision related to Related Party Transactions 

 
i. Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a director or 

any other employee, without obtaining the consent of the Board or approval 

by a resolution in the general meeting under sub-section (1) and if it is not 

ratified by the Board or, as the case may be, by the shareholders at a 

meeting within three months from the date on which such contract or 

arrangement was entered into, such contract or arrangement shall be 

voidable at the option of the Board or, as the case may be, of the 

shareholders and if the contract or arrangement is with a related party to 

any director, or is authorised by any other director, the directors concerned 

shall indemnify the company against any loss incurred by it. 

 

ii. Without prejudice to anything in the above para, it shall be open to 

the Company to proceed against a director or a KMP any other employee 

who had entered into such contract or arrangement in contravention of the 

provisions of this section for recovery of any loss sustained by it as a result 

of such contract or arrangement. 

                                                                       

                                                                 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 

                                                                             
                           Alan Savio Pacheco        Sachikanata Mishra    

Date  : 07.11.2023                                    Managing Director          Nominee Director                    
Place : New Delhi                                          DIN: 03497265              DIN : 02755068 

Address : 7th Floor, IFCI Tower 
61, Nehru Place, New Delhi 110019 
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                      ANNEXURE-II   
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                                                                                                             ANNEXURE-III 
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Comments made by Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide its letter dated 

August 29, 2023 and management reply thereon: 

CAG Observations Response of 

Management 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities 

Non-Financial Liabilities 

Provision —Rs.218.07 lakh 

Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets — 

Rs.40.51 lakh 

RBI’s Prudential Framework for Resolution of 

Stressed Assets stipulates that in case of Change in 

Ownership of the borrowing entities, credit facilities 

of the concerned borrowing entities may be 

continued/upgraded as ‘standard’ after the change in 

ownership is implemented. However, the quantum of 

provisions held (excluding additional provisions) by 

the bank against the said account as on the date of 

change in ownership of the borrowing entities can be 

reversed only after the end of monitoring period 

subject to satisfactory performance during the same. 

Satisfactory performance means that the borrower 

entity is not in default at any point of time during the 

period concerned. 

 

The Monitoring period has been defined as “the 

period from the date of implementation of Resolution 

Plan up to the date by which at least 10 per cent of 

the sum of outstanding principal debt as per the 

Resolution Plan and interest capitalization sanctioned 

as part of the restructuring, if any, is repaid, subject 

to minimum of one year from the commencement of 

the first payment of interest or principal (whichever 

is later) on the credit facility”. 

Audit observed that IFCI Factors Limited carried a 

provision of Rs.4.96 crores (Rs. 2.61 crores against a 

term loan of Rs.5.21 crores and Rs.2.35 crores 

against domestic factoring of Rs.4.69 crores) against 

Shriram EPC Limited (SEL) as on 31 March 2022. A 

Resolution Plan was approved (09.03.2022) for the 

 
 
 
 
 
The shortfall in provisioning 
has been made in FY 23-24. 
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SEL as the change in management was envisaged (a 

Kuwait based entity named- Mark AB Capital LLC had 

proposed to invest in SEL) and as per the plan, the 

loan account was restructured after receiving a down 

payment of Rs.6.12 crores against total outstanding 

amount of Rs.13.24 crores. 

Audit observed that IFCI Factors Limited started 

receiving interest payments on above loan w.e.f July 

2022 and received total amount of Rs.16.13 lakh as 

interest payment till the end of March 2023. Since, no 

principal amount has been received till March 2023 

and further, minimum one year has also not been 

elapsed from the date of first payment of interest, the 

provision of Rs.4.96 crore held at the time of 

implementation of Resolution Plan should not have 

been reversed. 

Incorrect reversal of provision amount has resulted in 

understatement of Provision to the extent of Rs.4.96 

crore and corresponding understatement of loss for 

the year by the same amount. 
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of better transparency 
and accountability in all facets of operations and all its interactions with its stakeholders including 
shareholders, employees, bankers and the auditors. The Company constantly endeavours to 
achieve standards of Corporate Governance in order to enhance the long term stakeholders’ value 
and maintain good Corporate Governance. The Company has well established, transparent and 
fair administrative set up to provide for professionalism and accountability. 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 

Composition, Category and Attendance of the Board of Directors 
[ 

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of the Company consisted of six Directors, out of whom five 
are Non-Executive Directors while one is Executive Director being the Managing Director.  
 

The composition of the Board, number of Board Meetings held, attendance, number of 
Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership of Committees in other Companies in respect of 
each Director as on March 31, 2023 is furnished below: 
 

Sl 

No 

Name of Director Category Attendance Particulars No. of Directorships/ Committee 

Memberships/ Chairmanships 
of other Companies 

No. of Board Meetings 

during the tenure of 
Director  

At AGM 

held on 
December 

21, 2022 

Other 

directorships 

Committee 

Memberships 

Commit

tee 
Chairm

anships 

Held Attended     

1. Mr. Manoj Mittal Non-

Executive 
Chairman 

5 5 No 4 0 0 

2. Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Jain 

Non-
Executive 

Director 

5 5 No 3 2 0 

3. Mr. Ashok Kumar 

Motwani 

Non-

Executive 
Director 

5 5 Yes 2 1 0 

4. Mr. Sachikanta 

Mishra 

Non-

Executive 
Director 

5 5 Yes 2 0 0 

5. Mr. Alan Savio 

Pacheco (a) 
Managing 

Director 

2 2 Yes 3 0 0 

6. Ms. Pooja 

Mahajan(b) 
Non-

Executive 
Director 

 

 
 

 
 

1 1 Yes 0 0 0 
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DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING FY 2022-23 

 

7. Mr. Sunil Kumar 
Bansal(c) 

Non-
Executive 

Director 

3 3 N.A - - - 

8. Dr. Mrs. Deepali 
Pant Joshi (d) 

Non-
Executive 

Director 

4 4 N.A - - - 

9. Mr. Bikash Kanti 
Roy(e) 

Managing 
Director 

3 3 N.A - - - 

(a) Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco was appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. October 12, 2022. 
(b) Ms. Pooja Mahajan was appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. November 24, 2022 and regularized as 

Director in the AGM w.e.f. December 21, 2022. 
(c) Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal ceased as Nominee Director Non-executive w.e.f. September 12, 2022.  
(d) Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi ceased as Director w.e.f. November 09, 2022. 
(e) Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased as Managing Director w.e.f October 12, 2022. 

 

Notes: 
 
(i) Number of Meetings represents the Meetings held during the period in which the Director 

was member of the Board. 
(ii) The details of Committees include only the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee.  
(iii) None of the Directors of the Company were members of more than ten committees or                 

acted as Chairperson of more than five committees across all the Companies in which they 
were Directors. 

(iv)  Number of other Directorship is exclusive of companies under Section 25 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Board met five times during the Financial Year 2022-2023 viz., on April 19, 2022, May 13, 
2022, August 03, 2022, November 07, 2022, and February 09, 2023.  
 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are to examine the Financial Statements and the 
auditors’ report thereon, to evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems, 
to review and monitor the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit 
process, to approve transactions with related parties, review the functioning of the Whistle 
Blower Mechanism, etc. 
 
 
COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
The Audit Committee met five times during the financial year 2022-23 at regular intervals on 
May 13, 2022, August 03, 2022, November 03, 2022, November 07, 2022 and February 08, 
2023.  The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of members as on March 31, 
2023 is shown below: 
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(a) Ms. Pooja Mahajan was inducted as Member w.e.f. November 24, 2022. 

(b) Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi ceased as Member w.e.f. November 09, 2022. 
 

3. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are to formulate the 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, to 
identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management etc. 
 
COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, three meetings of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee were held on May 12, 2022, August 03, 2022 and November 03, 2022. The 
composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance of members as 
on March 31, 2023 is shown below: 

 
Name/ category Position in 

Committee 
No. of meetings during the 
tenure of member 

Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain 
Non-Executive Director 

Chairperson 3 3 

Mr. Sachikanata Mishra  
Non- Executive Director 

Member 3 3 

Ms. Pooja Mahajan 

Non- Executive Director (a) 
Member - - 

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2022-23 
 

Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi (b) 
Non-Executive Director 

Chairperson 3 3 

 

(a) Ms. Pooja Mahajan was inducted as Member w.e.f. November 24, 2022. 

(b) Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi was inducted as Chairperson w.e.f. November 09, 2022. 

Name/ category Position in Audit 

Committee 

No. of meetings during the tenure of 

member 

Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain   
Non- Executive Director 

Chairman 5 5 

Mr. Ashok Kumar MotwaniNon-
Executive Director 

Member 5 5 

Mr. Sachikanata Mishra 

Non- Executive Director 

Member 5 4 

Ms. Pooja Mahajan (a) Member 1 1 

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2022-23 
 

Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi(b)  
Non- Executive Director 

Member 4 4 
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 Details of remuneration paid to Directors 
The details of salary and sitting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2023 
are as under:  
                                                    (Amount in Rs.) 

*Salary paid up to October 12, 2022. 
 

4. COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS  
 

The terms of reference of Committee of Directors are to sanction financial assistance by way 
of factoring, advance against future receivables, corporate loans, settlement/restructuring of 
dues as per the Credit Policy of the Company, to borrow monies, create charge on the assets 
and to allot the securities etc.  

The Committee of Directors met four times during the Financial Year 2022-23 on April 19, 
2022, May 12, 2022, May 17, 2022, February 08, 2023. The composition of the Committee of 
Director and attendance of members as on March 31, 2023 is shown below: 

SI.

No. 

Name Salary Perquisite Profit 

In lieu 
of 

Salary 

Sitting 

Fees 

Total 

1. Mr. Manoj Mittal 
Non-Executive Chairman 

- - - - - 

2. Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain 

Non-Executive Director 

- - -  4,13,100/-  4,13,100/- 

3. Mr. Ashok Kumar Motwani 
Non-Executive Director 

- - - 1,75,500/- 1,75,500/- 

4. Mr. Sachikanta Mishra 

Non-Executive Director 

- - - - - 

5. Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco 

Managing Director 

     

6. Ms. Pooja Mahajan 
Non-Executive Director 

    - - 

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING FY 2022-23 

 

7. Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal 

Non-Executive Director 

- - - - - 

8. Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant 
Joshi 

Non-Executive Director 

   1,94,400/- 1,94,400/- 

9. Mr.  Bikash Kanti Roy 
Managing Director 

*25,32,000/- - -  *25,32,000/- 

Name/ category Position in 
Committee of 

Directors 

No. of meetings during the tenure 
of member 

Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain 
Non-Executive Director 

Chairman 4 4 

Mr. Sachikanta Mishra 

Non-Executive Director 
Member 4 3 

Mr. Alan Savio(a)  

Managing Director 
Member 1 1 

Ms. Pooja Mahajan(b) 
Non-Executive Director 

Member 1 1 
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(a) Mr. Alan Savio was inducted as member w.e.f October 26, 2022 

(b) Ms Pooja Mahajan was inducted as member w.e.f November 24, 2022 
(c) Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi ceased as member w.e.f. November 09, 2022. 

(d) Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased as Member w.e.f. October 12, 2022 

 

4. RECOVERY COMMITTEE 

 

The terms of reference of Recovery Committee are to oversee the NPA recovery. The 
Committee met two times during the Financial Year 2022-23 at regular intervals on May 12, 
2022 and July 04, 2022. The composition of the Recovery Committee and attendance of 
members as on March 31, 2023 is shown below: 

  
Name/ category Position in 

Committee of 

Directors 

No. of meetings during the 
tenure of member 

Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh kumar Jain 
Non-Executive Director 

Chairman 2 2 

Mr. Sachikanta Mishra 
Non-Executive Director 

Member 2 2 

Mr. Alan Savio(a)  

Managing Director 

Member - - 

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2022-23 
 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal(b) 
Non-Executive Director 

Member 2 2 

Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy (c) 

Managing Director 

Chairman 2 2 

(a) Mr. Alan Savio was inducted as member w.e.f October 26, 2022 
(b) Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal ceased as Chairman w.e.f September 12, 2022. 
(c) Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased as Member w.e.f. October 12, 2022 

 
 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

The terms of reference of Risk Management and Asset Liability Management Committee are 
to identify and monitor key risk areas, devise the policy and strategy for integrated risk 
management, to critically assess the Company’s business strategies and plans from a risk 
perspective, manage risks to which the Company is exposed, including credit, market, 
operational and reputational risks and to review the Statement of Short Term Dynamic 
Liquidity, Structural Liquidity, Interest Rate Sensitivity etc. The Risk Management & Asset 
Liability Management Committee met four times during the Financial Year 2022-23, on April 
19, 2022, May 12, 2022, November 03, 2022 and February 08, 2023. The composition of the 
Risk Management and Asset Liability Management Committee and attendance of members as 
on March 31, 2023 is shown below: 
 

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2022-23 

 

Dr. Mrs. Deepali Pant Joshi(c) 
Non-Executive Director 

      Member             3              3 

Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy (d) 

Managing Director 
      Member 3 3 
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Name/ category Position in 

Committee 

No. of meetings during the 

tenure of member 

Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh kumar JainNon-Executive 

Director 

Chairman 4 4 

Mr. Sachikanata Mishra  
Non-Executive Director 

Member 4 3 

Mr. Alan Savio  
Managing Director 

Member 2 2 

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2022-23 

 

Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy(a) 

Managing Director 

Member 2 2 

(a) Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased as Member w.e.f. October 12, 2022 
 

6. GENERAL BODY MEETING: 
 

Financial 
Year 

Date & time of AGM Venue of the AGM 

2021-22 21st December 2022/ 12:00 
Noon 

IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New 
Delhi-110019, (through VC) 

2020-21 15th November 2021/ 3:30 
P.M. 

IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New 
Delhi-110019, (through VC) 

2019-20 25th September 2020/ 12:00 
Noon 

IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New 
Delhi-110019 

2018-19 24th September 2019/ 12:00 
Noon 

IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New 
Delhi-110019 

 

Following Special Resolutions were passed at the above AGMs: 

 

7. DISCLOSURES 
 

(i) The Company did not enter into transactions with the related parties that may 
potentially conflict with the interests of the Company at large during the year under 
review. Further, all the related party transactions were in the ordinary course of 
business and arm length & have been disclosed in note no. 31 of the Notes to Accounts 
of the Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

AGM Date Particulars of Special Resolutions 

21st December 2022 NIL 

15th November 2021 NIL 

25th September 2020 NIL 

24th September 2019 NIL 
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(ii) There has been no non-compliance by the Company nor any penalties imposed on the 
Company by any authorities. 
 

(iii) The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy duly approved by the Board, which has been 
circulated to all the employees of the Company and also placed on the website of the 
Company viz. www.ifcifactors.com. Further, it is affirmed that no personnel has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee. 
 

(iv) During the year, no expenses which are of personal nature have been incurred for the 
Board of Directors and top management. 
 

(v) The Financial Expenses are 96.13% of the total expenses as against 52.39% for the 

last year. 

 

8.  MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The Annual Report and other statutory information are being sent to shareholders. The 
financial results of the Company are generally published in Business Standard / Financial 
Express newspaper. 

9.  TRAINING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Company furnishes a set of documents to the directors and informs them about the 
important data regarding recent developments about the performance of the Company, 
industry scenario & regulatory changes. 

                                               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 

                                                                             
                   Alan Savio Pacheco             Sachikanata Mishra    

Date  : 07.11.2023                            Managing Director               Nominee Director                    
Place : New Delhi                                  DIN: 03497265                   DIN : 02755068 
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CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
The Board of Directors have laid down a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all Board 
members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code of Conduct has also 
been posted on the website of the Company viz. www.ifcifactors.com The members of the 
Board and Senior Management Personnel have on 31st March, 2023 affirmed compliance with 
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. A declaration to this effect, duly signed by the 
Managing Director is given below and forms part of this Report. 
 
DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR   
 
I hereby confirm that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics framed for Directors and Senior Management, 
as approved by the Board, for the year ended 31st March, 2023.  
 
 
Place : New Delhi                      Alan Savio Pacheco               
Date : 07.11.2023                       Managing Director 
          DIN : 03497265 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
 

NBFC Industry 
 
Non-banking financial companies (NBFCs) maintained robust credit growth during 2022-23, 
supported by the broad-based revival in economic activity and targeted policy initiatives. The 
sector strengthened its financial soundness during the year through robust capital buffers, 
improved asset quality and consolidation of balance sheet. Sound macroeconomic 
fundamentals, a resilient financial system reflected in healthy balance sheets of banks and 
non-banking financial companies (NBFCs), and a deleveraged corporate sector imparted 
resilience to counter the adverse global spill overs. A scale based regulatory framework was 
implemented for NBFCs during 2022-23. 
 
 
Factoring Industry 
 
Subsequent to amendment to Factoring Regulation Act, 2011, the Reserve Bank has issued 
requisite regulations pertaining to the manner of granting the certificate of registration (CoR) 
to companies which propose to undertake factoring business. In addition to NBFC-Factors, all 
non-deposit taking NBFC-investment and credit companies (NBFC-ICCs) with asset size of 
1,000 crore and above have been allowed to undertake factoring business, subject to 
satisfaction of certain conditions; and other NBFCs can undertake factoring business by 
seeking registration as NBFC-Factors. Further, the Reserve Bank has issued regulations on 
registration of assignment of receivables with central registry by TReDS entities, in case of 
factoring transactions undertaken on TReDS platform. These steps are expected to enhance 
the scope of entities eligible to undertake factoring transactions and would also help in 
increased flow of credit to MSMEs.  
 
  
 Operational Performance 
 

To address the challenges faced by your company due to legacy Non Performing Assets, your 
company focussed on clean up of the Balance Sheet and reduction in organizational costs 
during the year. Your company also focussed on generating liquidity to meet its obligations 
towards servicing of Non Convertible Debentures, which fell due for repayment in April and 
May 2023. Through focussed recovery measures, steps for monetization of legacy accounts, 
close monitoring of liquidity and with the timely support of the Holding Company, your 
Company was able to augment its liquidity to meet all its debt servicing obligations without 
any delays. 
 
During the year, your Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 9.88 crore  and a gross income of 
Rs.14.75 crore. Further, your Company incurred a loss before tax of Rs. 0.54 crore and a loss 
after tax of Rs.4.21 crore.  
 
The major financial parameters for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 vis-à-vis the 
previous financial year are tabulated below: 
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(Rs. in Crore) 

                                                                  

Segment wise / Product –wise Performance 

 

The Company has extended both factoring and non-factoring facilities to its clients. The 

product wise exposure of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is as under: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount              

(Rs. in crore) 

A.  Factoring  

1. Domestic Sales Bill Factoring (Standard) 9.74 

2. Export Sales Bill Factoring (Standard) - 

3. Advance Against Future Receivables (Standard) - 

4. Purchase Bill Factoring (Standard) - 

5. Non-performing Assets 270.71 

 Total (A) 280.45 

B.  Non Factoring  

 Corporate Loan (Standard) 0.20 

 Non-performing Assets 55.73 

 Total (B) 55.93 

 Total (A+B) 336.38 

 

Parameters Year ended 

31.03.2023 

Year ended 

31.03.2022 

Turnover 9.88 25.03 

Funds in Use   

Factoring Business 280.45 367.04 

Other Business 55.93 100.30 

Total Funds in use 336.38 467.34 

Total Income 14.75 25.36 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (-)0.5434 (-)11.97 

Profit  / (Loss) After Tax (-)4.21 (-)9.67 
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The Company has extended facilities across industry segment. Industry wise exposure of the 

Company as on March 31, 2023 is as under: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Amount  

(Rs. crore) 

1. 
Metal & Steel 53.57 

2. 
Engineering 34.77 

3. 
Construction 22.25 

4. 
Pharmaceuticals 35.03 

5. 
Infrastructure 59.05 

6. 
IT & ITES 21.85 

7. 
Auto & Auto Ancillary 10.76 

8. 
Logistics 28.97 

9. 
Real Estate 14.34 

10. 
Textile 10.19 

11 
Others 29.21 

12 
NBFC 4.48 

13 
Telecommunication 11.91 

 Grand Total 336.38 

 
 

Risks and concerns  

i) Increased competition from banks consequent to permission to banks to undertake 

business of factoring in India. 

ii) Prolonged litigation involved in recovery of dues. 

iii) Cost of funds for an NBFC is higher than banks resulting into shrinking margins. 

  

Internal Control Systems 
 
The Company has an Internal Control System which is commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations.  
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Other disclosures 

Your company had made an application to the Registrar of Companies – Delhi (RoC) to grant 
extension of time for holding the Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023.  Registrar of Companies – Delhi (RoC) vide letter dated August 22, 2023 has granted 
extension of three months i.e. upto December 31st, 2023. Accordingly, the Annual General 
Meeting for FY 2022-23 is being convened within the time period allowed by the ROC. 
 
                                                           

 
                                                 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

                                                                             
                    Alan Savio Pacheco                Sachikanata Mishra    

Date  : 07.11.2023                             Managing Director                  Nominee Director                    
Place : New Delhi                                   DIN: 02171876                      DIN : 02755068 
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  Rasool Singhal & Co. 

  Chartered Accountants 
A-176, Surajmal Vihar, Delhi-110092 

Contact: 9810041371, 0120-4207878;  

E-Mail: rasoolsinghalandco@gmail.com 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To 

The Members of IFCI Factors Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited  (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
st
 March, 2023, and the Statement of  

Profit and Loss (including statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash 

Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the  financial 

statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give a true and fair view,  in conformity with the 

Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company 

as at 31
st
 March, 2023, and its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive 

income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis of opinion: 

We conducted our audit of these Ind-AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor‟s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 

in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

ICAI‟s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Emphasis of Matter: 

1. Attention is drawn to “Annexure C” of this report, regarding observation on “Internal 

control system over financial reporting” as set forth in such Annexure, which is believed 

to be fundamental to the users' understanding of the control environment.  

2. In Note 7, Company books are reflecting Rs. 8637.51 Lacs as deferred tax assets which is 

not in consonance with IndAS-12 and prudence concept which require that deferred tax 

assets is to be recognized only for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it 

is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 

difference can be utilized.   

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

 

We draw attention to Note 3 in the financial statements, which indicates that the major portion 

i.e. 97% of the Company‟s Loan assets has become Non-performing (NPA). Further, as 

informed by the management, the company has not sanctioned/disbursed any fresh loan during 

last Year. This shows the company do not have any running business model as of date. These 

events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company‟s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 

this matter. Attention is also invited to matter reported at 'Clause xix‟ of Annexure A in this 

audit report. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the f i n a n c i a l  statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Internal controls over financial 

reporting 

 

We identified internal controls over 

financial reporting as a key audit matter 

for the Company because its financial 

accounting and reporting systems need 

to be fundamentally reliant on policies 

and procedures that pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions 

of the assets of the company and provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the company are 

being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and 

directors of the company 

Our procedures included and were not limited to 

the following:  

 Assessing the reasonableness of the control 

environment by obtaining understanding of 

the relevant industry, regulatory, and other 

external factors including the applicable 

financial reporting framework.  

 Assessing the design and evaluation of the 

operating effectiveness of entity level 

controls and process level controls.  

 Understanding and assessing the design and 

evaluation of the operating effectiveness of 

controls with respect to classes of 

transactions, related accounting records, 

supporting information and specific 

accounts in the financial statements that are 

used to initiate, record, process and report 

transactions and financial reporting process 

used to prepare the company's financial 

statements, including significant accounting 

estimates and disclosures. 

 Evaluating how the company communicates 

financial reporting roles and responsibilities 

and significant matters relating to financial 

reporting, including communications 

between management and those charged 

with governance; and external 

communications, such as those with 

regulatory authorities. 

 Evaluating the nature of the internal audit 

function's responsibilities, its organisational 

status, and the activities performed, or to be 

performed. 
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the 

Ind AS financial statements and our auditor‟s report thereon. The aforesaid Annual Report is 

expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 

inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

When we may read the aforesaid Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 

governance and take appropriate actions as per the applicable laws and regulations. 

  

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Ind AS 

Financial Statements 

The Company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give 

a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 

statements, that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Board of directors is responsible for assessing 

the company‟s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company‟s financial reporting 

process. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate and 

effective controls in respect of use of accounting software that entails the requisite features as 

specified by the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 including an evaluation and assessment of 

the adequacy and effectiveness of the company's accounting software in terms of recording and 

audit trail of each and every transaction and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled and 

the audit trail been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record 

retention. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for audit of for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor‟s 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect material 

misstatements when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decision of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and  

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risks of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the  

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS 

Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of  

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management‟s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or condition that may cast significant doubt on the company‟s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor‟s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor‟s report.  

However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a 

going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our 

audit. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor‟s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of such checks 

of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks 

of the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, in the “Annexure B” on the directions and sub- 

directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 
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3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company at its registered office so far as it appears from our examination of those 

books, except some documents/papers have been kept at some place in Paschim Vihar.; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in 

Equity dealt with   by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended; 

(e) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 

June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions 

of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, 

the reporting about any director being disqualified from under sub-section (2) of section 

164 is not applicable for the company; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind 

AS financial  statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, refer to our    separate report in “Annexure C” to this audit report; 

(g) As per Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the 

Government Companies. Accordingly, reporting in accordance with requirement of 

provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable on the Company. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‟s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has no pending litigation except those mentioned in Note 26, which 

may impact its financial position in its financial statements.  

ii. The Company has no long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any 

provision, is required under any law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds to or in any other person or entity, 

including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(b) The company has not received any funds (which are material either individually 

or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 

53



caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 

11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used such 

accounting software (ORACLE) for maintaining its books of account which has a 

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated 

throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the 

course of our audit, on test check basis, we did not come across any instance of audit 

trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by 

the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 
 

 

 

For Rasool Singhal & Co.         

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 500015N 

  

 

 

(CA. Anuj Goyal ) 

Partner 

Membership No. 075710 

Date  : 22/05/2023  

Place : New Delhi 

UDIN: 23075710BGYQXT2249 

 
 

 

 
   

 
 

  

ANUJ 
GOYAL

Digitally 
signed by 
ANUJ GOYAL
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under „Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements‟ section of 

our report of even date to the members of IFCI Factors Limited  on the accounts for the year ended 31 

March 2023. 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment, capital work-in 

progress, and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

  (B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 

assets.  

 (b) The Property, Plant & Equipment has been physically verified by the management 

annually, which is a reasonable interval in accordance with the size of the company. No 

material discrepancies were reported in the physical verification report.  

 (c) As informed by the management, Company do not have any immovable properties (other 

than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 

executed in favour of the Company) as a part of property, plant and equipment, and capital 

work-in progress. Hence this clause is not applicable on the company.  

 (d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 

assets) or its Intangible assets during the year. 

 (e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 

proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any 

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) As the company does not hold any Inventory during the year, this clause is not applicable 

on the company.  

 (b) As informed by the management, The Company has not been sanctioned any working 

capital limits from any bank, during the year under consideration. Hence this clause is not 

applicable on the company. 

(iii)  (a) As informed by the management, during the year company has not made any 

investment, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances 

in the nature of loans (except Loan given to its customers as part of their main 

business), secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or any other parties. The company is a registered Non-Banking 

Financial Company (NBFC), the main business of the company is to give loans, 

hence this clause is not applicable on the company. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on audit 

procedures performed by us, No such investments has been made by the company 

during the year, hence this clause is not applicable on the company. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of any loans 

or advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and 

payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular 

w.r.t of Standard Loan Assets. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is an amount of 

Rs. 263.59 Lakhs is overdue for more than ninety days, w.r.t standard loan assets, as 

on balance sheet date and same is  received after balance sheet but before approval of 

the financial statements by the Board of the Company.  

(e) The company is a registered Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), the main 

business of the company is to give loans, and hence this clause is not applicable 

on the company. 

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no loans or 

advances in the nature of loans which are either repayable on demand or without 
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specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

(iv)  The company is a registered Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) to which the 

provisions of the section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable, 

hence this clause is not applicable on the company.  

(v)  The company is a registered Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) to which the 

provisions of the Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable, hence 

this clause is not applicable on the company.  

(vi)  The central government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 

148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has been regularly 

depositing with the appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues in conformation 

with clause 3(vii) of the Order and there no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at 31 

March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 (b) According to the information/explanations given to us, the Company has some disputes 

which have resulted into demands under the Income Tax Act, 1961.The details of which 

are given below: 

Name of the 

Statute 

Nature of 

the Dues 

Amount not provided 

for and treated as 

contingent liability 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Period to which the 

amount relates 

(Assessment Year) 

Forum where 

dispute is 

pending 

Income Tax 

Act, 1961 

Income 

Tax 

3.73 A/Y 2002-03 AO/TRO 

Income Tax 

Act, 1961 

Income 

Tax 

2.66 A/Y 2003-04 AO/TRO 

Income Tax 

Act, 1961 

Income 

Tax 

9.42 A/Y 2004-05 AO/TRO 

Income Tax 

Act, 1961 

Income 

Tax 

5.38 A/Y 2011-12 AO/TRO 

Income Tax 

Act, 1961 

Income 

Tax 

4.63 A/Y 2002-03 AO/TRO 

Total  25.82   
 

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income, any transaction not recorded in the 

books of account, during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 

of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any 

bank or financial institution or other lender. 

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Company 

has not raised funds through term loans during the year. 

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not raised funds 

through term loans during the year. 

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no 

subsidiary, Joint venture or associates; hence this clause is not applicable on the company.  

 (f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no 

subsidiary, Joint venture or associates; hence this clause is not applicable on the company. 

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
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Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year.          

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement u/s 62(1)(c) or 42 

respectively of companies act of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or 

optionally convertible) during the year.    

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and during the course of our 

examination of the Books and Records of the Company in accordance with the generally 

accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on 

or by the company or its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor we 

have been informed of such case by the management. 

 (b) The auditors have not submitted, during the year and upto the date of this report, any 

report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form ADT-4 

as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government.   

 (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received 

by the company during the year. 

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as prescribed u/s 406 of the Act. Accordingly, 

clauses 3(xii) (a), 3 (xii) (b) and 3 (xii) (c) of the Companies (Auditor‟s Report) Order, 

2020 for Nidhi Company, are not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii)  The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Act, with 

respect to transactions with the related parties, wherever applicable. Details of the 

transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the financial statements as 

required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

(xiv)  (a) In our opinion the Company is having an adequate internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of the company. Attention is also drawn to 

the Annexure-C of our report. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to 

the company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and 

extent of our audit procedures.  

  

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered 

into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with its directors 

and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the 

company. 

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has received registration certificate dated 3
rd

 June 2009 from Reserve Bank of 

India under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and is 

permitted to carry on the business as NBFC-Factors in accordance with the Factoring 

Regulations Act, 2011. 

 (b) Company is permitted to carry on the business as NBFC-Factors in accordance with the 

Factoring Regulations Act, 2011. 

 (c) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core 

Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 

India. Accordingly, provision of clause (xvi) (c) is not applicable to the Company. 

 (d) In view of the answer to clause (xvi) (c) above, provision of clause (xvi) (d) is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(xvii)  Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, the Company has not 

incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 
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(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 

this clause is not applicable. 

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we believe that no material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company may not be capable of 

meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 

a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 

assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is 

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 

any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. Attention is also 

invited to “Material uncertainty related to going concern” section of our audit report. 

(xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no amount 

is required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, accordingly, 

provisions of clause nos. (xx) (a) & (xx) (b) of para 3 of the Order are not applied to the 

company. 

 

For Rasool Singhal & Co.         

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 500015N 

 

 

 

 

 

(CA. Anuj Goyal ) 

Partner 

Membership No. 075710 

Date  : 22.05.2023 

Place : New Delhi 
 

 

 

  

ANUJ 
GOYAL

Digitally 
signed by 
ANUJ GOYAL
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under „Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements‟ 

section of our report of even date to the members of IFCI Factors Limited on the accounts for the year 

ended 31 March 2023. 

 

Sl 

No. 

Direction / Sub-direction u/s 

143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

Auditor’s reply on action taken on 

the directions 

Impact on 

the 

Financial 

Statement 

Directions: 

1. 
Whether the Company has system in 

place to process all the accounting 

transactions through IT system? If yes, 

the implications of processing of 

accounting transactions outside IT 

system on the integrity of the accounts 

along with the financial implications, if 

any, may be stated. 

As per the information and explanations 

given to us, the Company has a system in 

place to process all the accounting 

transactions through IT system. 

Company has Trade Free System in place 

for recording factoring transactions and 

Oracle for term loan and accounting 

entries. 

Based on the audit procedure carried out 

and as per the information and 

explanations given to us, no accounting 

transactions have been processed / carried 

outside the IT system. Accordingly, there 

are no  implications on the integrity of the 

Accounts. 

Nil 

2. 
Whether there is any restructuring of an 

existing loan or cases of waiver/write off 

of debts / loans / interest etc made by a 

lender to the company due to the 

company‟s inability to repay the loan? If 

yes, financial impact may be stated. 

Whether such cases are properly 

accounted for. 

Based on the audit procedures carried out 

and as per the information and 

explanations given to us, there was no 

restructuring of any loans or cases of 

waiver/write off of debts/ loans/ interest  etc. 

made by the lender to the company due to 

the company‟s inability to repay the loan. 

Nil 

3. 
Whether funds received/receivable for 

specific schemes from Central /State 

Government or its agencies were 

properly accounted for/utilized as per its 

term and conditions? List the cases of 

deviation. 

Based on the audit procedures carried out 

and as per the information and 

explanations given to us, No funds were 

received/receivable for specific schemes 

from Central /State Government or its 

agencies the Funds received / receivable 

for specific schemes from Central / State 

Government or its agencies during the 

year. 

 

 

 

Nil 
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Sub-Directions: 

1. 
Investments: 

Whether the titles of ownership in 

respect of CGS/ SGS/ Bonds/ 

Debentures etc. are available in 

physical/demat form and these, in 

aggregate, agree with the respective 

amounts shown in the Company‟s books 

of accounts? If not, details may be 

stated. 

According to information and 

explanations given to us and based on the 

information available, the titles of 

ownership in respect of CGS/ SGS/ 

Bonds/ Debentures etc. are available in 

demat form and these, in aggregate, agree 

with the respective amounts shown in the 

Company‟s books of accounts. 

Nil 

2.  
Loans: 

In respect of provisioning requirement 

of all restructured, rescheduled, 

renegotiated loan-whether a system of 

periodical assessment of realizable 

value of securities available against all 

such loans is in place and adequate 

provision has been created during the 

year? Any deficiencies in this regard, if 

any, may be suitably commented upon 

along with financial impact. 

According to information and 

explanations given to us and based on the 

information available, there is a system of 

periodical assessment of realizable value 

of securities available against all 

restructured, rescheduled and renegotiated 

loan and adequate provision has been 

created during the year. 

Nil 

 

For Rasool Singhal & Co.         

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 500015N 

 

 

 

 

(CA. Anuj Goyal ) 

Partner 

Membership No. 075710 

Date  : 22.05.2023 

Place: New Delhi 

  

ANUJ 
GOYAL

Digitally 
signed by 
ANUJ GOYAL
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“Annexure C” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Annexure referred to in paragraph 3(f) under „Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements‟ 

section of our report of even date to the members of IFCI Factors Limited           on the accounts for the 

year ended 31
st
 March 2023 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of 

IFCI Factors Limited (“the Company”) as of 31
st
 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of 

the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company‟s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal controls over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial 

reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to Company‟s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

financial reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 

deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements and 

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial control over financial reporting with 

reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

control with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company‟s internal financial control over financial reporting 

with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to 

Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial 

control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements includes those policies 

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) 
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 

of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with 

reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with 

reference to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 

over financial reporting with reference to financial statements and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to financial statements were operating 

effectively as at 31
st
 March 2023, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the components of internal controls stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 

ICAI. 

Emphasis of Matter: 

 We draw the attention to the fact that the internal auditor, who has verified the operating 

effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting, is the employee of the company, who 

is also Head of the operation department of the company. Further, the control environment in 

relation to review of preparation and presentation of financial statement and corresponding risk 

assessment process is deficient to some extant within the company where such a process would 

ordinarily be expected to have been established. 

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

 

For Rasool Singhal & Co.         

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 500015N 

 

 

 

 

(CA. Anuj Goyal ) 

Partner 

Membership No. 075710 

Date  : 22.05.2023 

Place : New Delhi 

 

ANUJ 
GOYAL

Digitally signed 
by ANUJ GOYAL
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